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2.4 The Council  has a vision for how the City will look in 2020 which is based on the 
fundamental ideals of prosperity, fairness and democracy and within those ideals to 
have: 
 

�x A strong economy; 
�x Safety and opportunity for all children; 
�x A great future for young people; 
�x Thriving local communities; 
�x A healthy and happy City; and 
�x A modern Council. 

 
2.5 The Council has continued to face extraordinary financial pressures with savings 

required for 2015/16 of £105m giving an accumulated total savings of £560m to date.  
Further savings are required in 2016/17 of nearly £90m with an additional savings 
projection of around £160m by 2020.  These savings are in addition to the pressures 
on services arising from demographic changes and increasing and changing needs.  
 
 

3 Major Developments  
 
3.1 Despite the financial pressures faced and the demands placed on it as a result of the 

continued requirement to deliver high quality services whilst undertaking a major 
review of its operations, the Council has continued to take on new responsibilities and 
manage large redevelopments of the City.  Details of the major activities are set out 
below. 
 
Better Care Fund 
 

3.2 The Better Care Fund (BCF) was a policy initiative announced by government in June 
2013 aimed at driving the transformation of local services to ensure that people 
receive better and more integrated care and support. 
 

3.3 The Council endorsed the principles of a BCF joint pooled budget for Older Adult 
Social Care and Health integrated provision between the Council and local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and plans were developed through 2014/15 for 
implementation from 1 April 2015.  The Council was identified as the host for the local 
BCF. 
 

3.4 Whilst no new money was made available as a result of the introduction of the BCF, 
there was an opportunity to reallocate resources within the local care and health 
sectors to make better and more effective use of them.  Funding was allocated by the 
Department of Health through money made available to CCGs and funding made 
available to the Council through the Disabled Facilities and Community Capital 
Grants were also included in the BCF.  The total resource for the pooled fund for 
2015/16 was £95.7m. 
 



Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

7 
 





Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

9 
 

Council Tax or for setting rents for Council dwellings.  
The Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services shows the true economic cost of 
�S�U�R�Y�L�G�L�Q�J���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V�����P�R�U�H���G�H�W�D�L�O���R�I���Z�K�L�F�K���L�V���V�K�R�Z�Q���L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�P�S�U�H�K�H�Q�V�L�Y�H��
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
5.3 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) �± provides the 
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offset by 

�x A net reduction in investments, particularly short term investments, following 
the disposal of NEC Ltd. 
  

 
5.5 Cash Flow Statement �± shows how the Council generates and uses cash during the 

year and the impact this has on the balances of cash and cash equivalents.  Cash 
flows are classified into operating, investing and financing activities. 

 
Supplementary Statements 
 

5.6 
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7 �6�X�P�P�D�U�\���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���)inancial Performance for the year ended 31 March 
2016 
 

7.1 Revenue Expenditure  
 

7.1.1 �7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���U�H�Y�H�Q�X�H���D�Q�G���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���E�X�G�J�H�W�V��were allocated between three directorates 
with some other budgets being managed corporately.  Spending against these 
budgets was carefully monitored throughout the year and reported to Cabinet 
regularly.  The year-end outturn position was reported to Cabinet on 17 May 2016.   

 
7.1.2 Following net appropriations to reserves of £5.1m the directorate net overspend was 

£10.0m.  The table below gives a summary of the General Fund year-end outturn 
variation by directorate as reported to Cabinet. 
 
Directorate  Outturn 

Variation 
over/(under) 

spend  

Year-end Transfers to/(from) 
reserves  

In Year 
Variation 
(to)/from 
balances   Grant  Other  Total  

 £m £m £m £m £m 
People Directorate 15.956 (1.400) (4.509) (5.909) 10.047 
Economy Directorate (8.261) 4.273 4.131 8.404 0.143 
Place Directorate (2.794) 1.290 1.323 2.613 (0.181) 
      
Total Directorate Revenue 
Expenditure  

4.901 4.163 0.945 5.108 10.009 

Less Transfer from School Balances 4.605   
Directorate Total Excluding School Balances  5.550   

 
7.1.3 There was a net underspending of £4.4m on corporate accounts, after appropriations 

to reserves, and of £8.4m in policy contingency.  It has been agreed to use £10.0m of 
this net underspend to address the year end pressure in People Directorate.     
 

7.2 Capital Expenditure 
 
7.2.1 Total expenditure on directorate capital schemes in 2015/16, reported to Cabinet on 

17 May 2016, was £458.0m (2014/15: £400.8m), compared to the revised capital 
budget of £563.1m (2014/15: £485.9m).  The reported variance of £105.1m was 
mainly as a result of delays in expenditure on a number of capital schemes 
���…�����������P���������'�H�W�D�L�O�V���R�I���W�K�L�V���V�O�L�S�S�D�J�H���D�U�H���J�L�Y�H�Q���L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���&�D�S�L�W�D�O���2�X�W�W�X�U�Q���U�H�S�R�U�W��
for 2015/16.  It should be noted that no Council resources were lost as a result of the 
�V�O�L�S�S�D�J�H���D�V���W�K�H���U�H�V�R�X�U�F�H�V���D�Q�G���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G���H�[�S�H�Q�G�L�W�X�U�H���Z�L�O�O���E�H���³�U�R�O�O�H�G���I�R�U�Z�D�U�G�´���L�Q�W�R���I�X�W�X�U�H��
years. 
 
Directorate  Capital 

Revised 
Budget  

Capital 
Outturn  

Capital 
Variance  

 £m £m £m £m£m

£m
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7.3 
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�x It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now.  The sum is the current 
assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities for existing 
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement and 
of future expected investment performance; 
 

�x There is a 20 �\�H�D�U���U�H�F�R�Y�H�U�\���S�O�D�Q���Z�K�L�F�K���K�D�V���E�H�H�Q���E�X�L�O�W���L�Q�W�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V��
financial plans; 
 

�x It is not unique to Birmingham City Council as this is in common with the 





Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

15 
 

9.3 However, the Council recognised that the need to make such large on-going savings 
required a different approach to be adopted.  From 2015/16 the Future Council 
Programme was implemented, which continues to involve fundamental reviews of the 
role of the Council in meeting the needs of its customers and embraces joint working 
both across Council directorates and with partners.  

 
9.4 �7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���N�H�\ capital priorities are addressed through the three-year capital 

programme, totalling £966m in the Business Plan 2016+. The Council continues to 
pursue major initiatives taking advantage of the availability of external capital 
resources, with the programme including £272m of Government grants and other 
external contributions. The programme also incorporates borrowing proposals set out 
in the approved Enterprise Zone Investment Plan, the cost of which will be supported 
from projected business rates growth in the Enterprise Zone area. 
 

9.5 Full details of the 2016/17 Revenue and Capital Budgets can be found within the 
Business Plan and Budget 2016+ approved by Council on 1 March 2016, via 
www.birmingham.gov.uk. 
 

9.6 On 23 June 2016 the referendum on European Union membership resulted in a vote 
to leave the European Union (Brexit).  It is too early to determine what the impact of 
leaving the European Union will be on the Council.  At present the government has 
not triggered Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty and there continues to be uncertainty as 
to when it will be triggered and until that time negotiations on exit will not be started.   
 
Whilst there is uncertainty in the financial markets and a lowering of the Bank of 
England base rate there may be other consequences impacting on the Council 
through, for example: 
 

�x Cessation of European grants, which the Council and partner organisations 
have received in the past; 

�x Long term changes in gilt yields and share values which may impact on 
pension fund assets and liabilities; 

�x Changes in investment plans by companies within the local economy; 
�x Changes in non-current asset values.  
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Movement in Reserves Statement  
 
This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 
�&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�����D�Q�D�O�\�V�H�G���L�Q�W�R���µ�X�V�D�E�O�H���U�H�V�H�U�Y�H�V�¶�����W�K�D�W���L�V�����W�K�R�V�H���W�K�D�W���F�D�Q���E�H���D�S�S�O�L�H�G���W�R���I�X�Q�G��
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.   
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£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Balance at 31 March 2014  85.8 348.3 4.4 27.5 44.6 142.4 653.0 (1,379.0) (726.0) 

Movement in Reserves during 
2014/15 

      
  

 
  

Surplus/(Deficit) on the provision of 
services (136.4) 

 
65.4 

   
(71.0) 

 
(71.0) 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

      
- (430.9) (430.9) 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure  (136.4) - 65.4 - - - (71.0) (430.9) (501.9) 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations (Note 6) 187.6 - (65.3) (11.2) (28.8) (38.3) 44.0 (44.1) (0.1) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves  51.2 - 0.1 (11.2) (28.8) (38.3) (27.0) (475.0) (502.0) 

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 7) 0.8 (0.8) 

    
- 

 
- 

Increase/Decrease in 2014/15 52.0 (0.8) 0.1 (11.2) (28.8) (38.3) (27.0) (475.0) (502.0) 

Balance at 31 March 2015  137.8 347.5 4.5 16.3 15.8 104.1 626.0 (1,854.0) (1,228.0) 

Movement in Reserves during 
2015/16 

      
  

 
  

Surplus/(Deficit) on the provision of 
services (193.4) 

 
59.0 

   
(134.4) 

 
(134.4) 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

      
- 519.6 519.6 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure  (193.4) - 59.0 - - - (134.4) 519.6 385.2 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations (Note 6) 208.3 

 
(58.9) 295.8 (10.0) (31.1) 404.1 (404.1) - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves  14.9 - 0.1 295.8 (10.0) (31.1) 269.7 115.5 385.2 
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Note 1 
Accounting Policies  
 
i. General Principles  
 
�7�K�H���6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���$�F�F�R�X�Q�W�V���V�X�P�P�D�U�L�V�H�V���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�L�R�Q�V���I�R�U���W�K�H������������������financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2016. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, requires the Council to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with 
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the Code) and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categorised non-current assets and financial 
instruments. Historical cost is deemed to be the carrying amount of an asset as at 1 April 
2007 (that is, brought forward from 31 March 2007) or at the date of acquisition, whichever 
date is the later, and if applicable is adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment. 
 
 
ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
 
Service activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments 
are made or received. In particular: 
 

�x Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Council; 

�x Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can reliably 
measure the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Council; 

�x Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed �± where there is a 
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that is, in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices 
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
�R�U���H�Y�H�Q�W�V���D�Q�G���F�R�Q�G�L�W�L�R�Q�V�����R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�R�V�L�W�L�R�Q���R�U���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H�����:�K�H�U�H��
a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
 
vi. Employee Benefits  
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short Term Benefits 
 
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits, for example cars for current employees, and are 
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the 
Council. An accrual is made for the cost of annual leave entitlements (or any other form of 
leave, for example time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, 
which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the 
wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which 
the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that leave 
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the leave absence occurs. 
 
Other Long Term Benefits 
 
Other long term employee benefits are benefits, other than post-employment and termination 
benefits, that are not expected to be settled in full before 12 months after the end of the 
annual reporting period for which employees have rendered the related service.  Within local 
authorities the value of these benefits are not expected to be significant.  Such long term 
benefits may include: 

�x Long term paid absence or sabbatical leave; 
�x Long term disability benefits; 
�x Bonuses; 
�x Deferred remuneration. 

 
Long term benefits would be accounted for on a similar basis to post-employment benefits. 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
�W�H�U�P�L�Q�D�W�H���D�Q���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�H�¶�V���H�P�S�O�R�\�P�H�Q�W���E�H�I�R�U�H���W�K�H���Q�R�U�P�D�O���U�H�W�L�U�H�P�H�Q�W���G�D�W�H���R�U���D�Q���R�I�I�L�F�H�U�¶�V��
decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the 
appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Cost line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can 
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a 
restructuring. 
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Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account balances to be charged with the 
amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. 
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 
Pension Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and 
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of one of three separate pension schemes: 
 

�x The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the West Midlands 
Pension Fund offices at Wolverhampton City Council; 

�x �7�K�H���7�H�D�F�K�H�U�V�¶���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���6�F�K�H�P�H���D�G�P�L�Q�L�V�W�H�U�H�G���E�\���&�D�S�L�W�D���7�H�D�F�K�H�U�V�¶���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q�V���R�Q��
behalf of the Department for Education; 

�x The NHS Pensions Scheme, administered by NHS Pensions. 
 
Each scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), 
earned during employment with the Council. 
 
�7�K�H���D�U�U�D�Q�J�H�P�H�Q�W�V���I�R�U���W�K�H���7�H�D�F�K�H�U�V�¶���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���6�F�K�H�P�H���D�Q�G���W�K�H���1�+�6���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q�V���6�F�K�H�P�H���P�H�D�Q��
liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. These 
schemes are, therefore, accounted for as if they were defined contribution schemes and no 
liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. Within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Children's and Education Services  
�D�Q�G���W�K�H���3�X�E�O�L�F���+�H�D�O�W�K���O�L�Q�H�V���D�U�H���F�K�D�U�J�H�G���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�¶�V���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V���S�D�\�D�E�O�H���W�R���W�K�H��
�7�H�D�F�K�H�U�V�¶���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���6�F�K�H�P�H���D�Q�G���1�+�6���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q�V���6�F�K�H�P�H���L�Q���W�K�H���\�H�D�U�� 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 

�x 
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vii. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset, has been charged as expenditure 
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer through the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged so that there is no impact on the level of Council Tax. 
 
 
viii. Charges to Revenue for Non -Current Assets  
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 

�x Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
�x Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off; 

�x Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance. An adjustment is, therefore, made to remove depreciation, amortisation and 
revaluation and impairment losses from the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account  
through Note 6, Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 
Regulations, and the Movement in Reserves Statement and to replace them by the statutory 
contribution from the General Fund or Housing Revenue Account Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
 
ix. Government Grants and Contributions  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 

�x the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 
�x the grants or contributions will be received. 

 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution are 
considered more likely than not to be satisfied in the future.  Conditions are stipulations that 
specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the 
form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, 
or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions are unlikely to be satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. Where conditions are satisfied or expected to 
be satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable 
revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring 
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where �W�K�H�U�H���L�V���D���µ�V�X�E�V�W�D�Q�W�L�D�O���S�H�U�L�R�G���R�I���W�L�P�H�¶���I�U�R�P���W�K�H���I�L�U�V�W���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���H�[�S�H�Q�G�L�W�X�U�H���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�H�G���I�U�R�P��
borrowing until the asset is ready to be brought into use. A substantial period of time is 
considered to mean in excess of two years.  Both of these tests will be determined using 
estimated figures at the time of preparing the accounts in the first year of capitalisation.  
�6�K�R�X�O�G���H�L�W�K�H�U���W�H�V�W���I�D�L�O���L�Q���V�X�E�V�H�T�X�H�Q�W���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���\�H�D�U�V�����W�K�H���S�U�L�R�U���\�H�D�U�¶�V���W�U�H�D�W�P�H�Q�W���Z�L�O�O���Q�R�W���E�H��
adjusted retrospectively. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (that is, it will not lead to a variation in the 
cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, 
the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 
 
From 1 April 2010 all additions and all material assets revalued (over £5m) are accounted for 
on a component basis. As components are added, any component being replaced is 
derecognised. On derecognising components where the component is within a non 
separated component bundle, the depreciation is apportioned on a straight line basis and 
derecognised accordingly.  In addition, where the historical cost of the old component is not 
readily determinable, it has been estimated by comparing the remaining useful economic life 
of the component to the original useful economic life and the cost of the replacement 
component.  A pro rata of both the depreciation and any applicable Revaluation Reserve is 
also derecognised.  
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and 
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. 
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The Council has not reviewed the deeds of all of its land 
and property to determine the categorisation of these assets. 
 
Assets are subsequently carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 
bases: 
 

�x infrastructure assets �± depreciated historical cost;  
�x community assets and assets under construction �± historical cost; 
�x dwellings �± current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social 

housing (EUV-SH); 
�x where cleared land has been designated for social housing use, that land is valued 

using the basis of EUV-SH; 
�x all other assets �± current value, determined as the price that would be received to 

sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the Balance 
Sheet date. 

 
Where a material item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose 
cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are evaluated 
separately. 
 
Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to 
ensure their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to 
the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from 
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, the accounting treatment is: 
 

�x where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance; 

�x where there is insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
firstly against the Revaluation Reserve and the remaining amount against the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end for any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible difference is estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying 
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting treatment is: 
 

�x where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance; 

�x where there is insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
firstly against the Revaluation Reserve and the remaining amount against the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for the depreciation that would have been charged if the loss 
had not been recognised. 
 
Useful Life 
 
The Council estimates that assets, at new, have remaining useful lives within the parameters 
as detailed below:   

�x Council Dwellings �± separated into the key components 
o Land �± indefinite life; 
o Kitchens 
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The useful life of each asset is reviewed annually by the Directorate user through their 
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xiii. Intangible Assets  
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled 
by the Council as a result of past events (for example, software licences) is capitalised when 
it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible 
asset to the Council.  
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or 
�S�U�L�P�D�U�L�O�\���L�Q�W�H�Q�G�H�G���W�R���S�U�R�P�R�W�H���R�U���D�G�Y�H�U�W�L�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���J�R�R�G�V���R�U���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V�� 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion and they are, 
therefore, carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an inta
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Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
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deducted from/added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write down 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan 
by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
 
Where premia and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund balance to be 
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was repayable or discount 
received when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund 
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Any gains/losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited/debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains/losses previously recognised in 
the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2006 
 
The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be 
accounted for as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of 
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where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (for example, from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income 
for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the 
Council settles the obligation. 
 
Provision for Back Pay Arising from Equal Pay Claims 
 
The Council has made a provision for the costs of back pay arising from claims made under 
the Equal Pay Act 1970, as amended by the Equal Pay Act (Amendment) Regulations 2003. 
The Council bases the estimate of its provision on the expected costs of settlement for 
claims received up to the point of production of its financial statements. 
 
The Council has received capitalisation directions to support an element of the provision 
made.  However, statutory arrangements allow settlements to be financed from the General 
Fund and Housing Revenue Account in the year that the payments actually take place, not 
when the provision is established.  The additional provision made above the capitalisation 
directions given is, therefore, balanced by an Equal Pay Back Pay Account created from 
amounts credited to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account balances in the year 
that the provision was made or modified.  The balance on the Equal Pay Back Pay Account 
will be debited back to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account balances through 
the Movement in Reserves Statement in future financial years as payments are made. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
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Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance through 
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preceptors since the cash paid to the latter in the year will not be equal to their share of the 
total cash collected. If the net cash paid to the major preceptors in the year is more than their 
proportionate share of the cash collected the Council will recognise a debit adjustment for 
the amount overpaid. Conversely, if the cash paid to the major preceptors in the year is less 
than their proportionate share of the amount collected then the Council will recognise a 
credit adjustment for the amount underpaid. 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
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xxvii. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets  
 
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with 
other ventures that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity. The Council recognises on its Balance Sheet the 
assets it controls and the liabilities it incurs, and debits and credits the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it 
earns from the activity of the operation. 
 
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly controlled 
by the Council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits for the 
venturers. The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a separate entity. The 
Council accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled assets, the liabilities and the 
expenses that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in the 
joint venture and income that it earns from the venture. 
 
 
xxviii. Council Acting as Agent  
 
The Council does not include transactions which relate to its role in acting as an agent on 
behalf of other bodies.  In such cases the Council is acting as an intermediary and does not 
have exposure to significant risks and rewards from the activities being undertaken.  
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Note 2 
Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted  
 
Impact of the adoption of new standards on the 2015/16 financial statements 
 
The Council is required to disclose information relating to the impact of the accounting 
change on the financial statements as a result of the adoption by the Code of a new or 
amended standard that has been issued, but is not yet required to be adopted by the 
Council.  For these financial statements the relevant standards are detailed: 
 

�x Amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 
Contributions) 

�x Amendment to IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 
in Joint Operations) 

�x Amendment to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment (Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation) 

�x 
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Schools 
The Council has assessed the legal framework underlying each type of school and 
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Where a school proposes to transfer to Academy Status, the Council will continue to retain 
any asset subject to transfer on the basis of its last revaluation, which maintains both the 
asset value and the anticipated useful life until the date of transfer.  The Council has taken 
the view that any asset transferring will continue, on the basis of the permitted use within the 
lease agreements, to be used for the provision of education services thus supporting the 
�&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���V�W�D�W�X�W�R�U�\���R�E�O�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U���W�K�H���S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�Rn of education.  On transfer to an Academy, 
�D�V�V�H�W�V���D�U�H���G�H�U�H�F�R�J�Q�L�V�H�G���L�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���I�R�U���Q�L�O���F�R�Q�V�L�G�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q�������� 
 
Specialist Assets 
The Council includes the value of assets on the Balance Sheet in line with its accounting 
policy set out in section xi. of Note 1.  However, the Council has a number of assets that it 
considers to be specialist assets for which an Existing Use Value, defined as the estimated 
amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation betweemnt fTlll







Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

49 
 

Item Uncertainties  Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions  

Measure of 
financial 
instrument fair 
values 

The Council has assessed the fair 
value of some of its financial 
investments by using the present value 
of future cashflows discounted at 
market rates. 

Given the complex nature of the 
underlying assumptions and the 
uncertainty regarding future market rates, 
the fair value is the best estimate that can 
be made.  A 1% change in long term 
interest rates would result in a £2.2m 
�F�K�D�Q�J�H���L�Q���W�K�H���I�D�L�U���Y�D�O�X�H���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V��
financial investments. 
 

Long term 
obligations 
under, for 
example, PFI 
schemes 
 

For service concessions, the fair value 
of the long term obligations has been 
based on financial models, including 
future assumptions on inflation and 
interest rates. 

The financial models assume an inflation 
rate of 2.5% If the annual inflation rate 
was to increase to 3.5% each year of the 
contracts, this would result in an increase 
in running costs of £29.2m in 2016/17, and 
a further £410m over the remaining lives 
of the contracts. 
 

Equal Pay The Council has included a provision of 
£310.1m for the settlement of claims 
for back pay arising from the Equal Pay 
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Note 6 
Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations  
 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
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HRA Major Repairs Reserve �± the Council is required by The Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve.  The reserve controls an element 
of the capital resources required to be used on HRA assets or for capital financing purposes. 
 
Capital Receipts Reserve �± reflects the income received from the disposal of capital assets 
prior to being used to fund future capital expenditure or for the redemption of debt.  Capital 
receipts cannot be used to fund revenue expenditure except where allowed by statue, for 
example, to meet costs of Equal Pay.  The level of the reserve has increased significantly in 
2015/16, reflecting the unapplied proceeds from the sale of the NEC Group and of Grand 
Central.  
 
Capital Grants Unapplied �± reflect the unused element of capital grants or capital 
contributions awarded to the Council, for which the conditions of the grant support are 
expected to be met or for which there are no conditions.  The reserve will be used to meet 
�I�X�W�X�U�H���\�H�D�U�V�¶���F�D�S�L�W�D�O���H�[�S�H�Q�G�L�W�X�U�H���� 
 
 
 
Note 9 
Unusable Reserves  
 
The following table shows the value of reserve balances that have come about as a result of 
accounting adjustments and are not therefore available to spend.   
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

743.8 Revaluation Reserve 977.1 
0.8 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 0.2 

271.4 Capital Adjustment Account (290.8) 
(29.7) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (27.9) 

(2,293.6) Pensions Reserve (2,087.7) 
50.1 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 30.0 

(13.8)
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2014/15 
 

2015/16 
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Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
 
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from 
the different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain 
financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions.  
The Council uses this account to manage premia paid and discounts received on the early 
redemption of loans and the recognised losses on loans advanced at less than a commercial 
interest rate.  These values are debited or credited to the Comprehe misimreheercial 
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2014/15 
 

2015/16 
£m 

 
£m 

(1,804.6) Balance at 1 April  (2,293.6) 

(423.1) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability 261.2 

(169.5) 

Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement  

(165.0) 

103.6 
�(�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�¶�V���S�H�Q�V�L�R�Q�V���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V���D�Q�G��
direct payments to retirees payable in the 
year 

109.7 

(2,293.6) Balance at 31 March  (2,087.7) 

 
 
 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts 
 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory 
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital 
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement 
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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There were no contributions remaining payable at the year-end.  The contributions due to be 
paid in the 2016/17 financial year are estimated to be £0.2m on the basis of an employer 
contribution rate of 14.3%. 
 
The Council is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early 
retirement outside of the terms of the NHS Pension Scheme. These costs are accounted for 
on a defined benefit basis and detailed in Note 11. 
 
The Council is not liable to the scheme for any other entities�¶ obligations under the plan. 
 
 
 
Note 11 
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes  
 
Participation in Pension Schemes 
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not 
actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the 
payments, which needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future 
entitlement. 
 
The Council participates in two post-employment schemes accounted for as defined benefit 
schemes: 
 

�x The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by the West Midlands 
Pension Fund office at Wolverhampton City Council �± this is a funded defined benefit 
career average salary scheme for benefits accrued since 1 April 2014, meaning that 
the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level 
intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. Benefits accrued 
to 31 March 2014 are based on final salary.  An employer's contribution rate of 12.9% 
was set for the Council for 2015/16 (2014/15: 12.3%), plus an additional payment of 
£41.9m (2014/15: £40.1m) to fund the pension deficit in respect of past service costs. 

 
�x Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early 

retirement �± this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities 
are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets 
built up to meet these pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet 
actual pension payments as they eventually fall due. 
 

The pension scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government 
Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions 
Committee of Wolverhampton City Council.  Policy is determined in accordance with the 
Pensions Fund Regulations.   
 
The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are: 

�x the longevity assumptions  
�x statutory changes to the scheme 
�x structural changes to the scheme (for example, large-scale withdrawals) 
�x changes to inflation 
�x 



Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

66 
 

These risks are mitigated, to a certain extent, by the statutory requirements to charge to the 
General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account the amounts required by statute as 
described in Note 1, Accounting Policies. 
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Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements 

      
2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 

 £m £m £m £m 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement     

     

Total post employment benefit charged to the (Surplus)/Deficit on the 
provision of services 166.7 163.0 2.8 2.1 

       

Other post employment benefit charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement     
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 Local Government Pension Scheme Unfunded Teacher 

Pension Scheme 
Total  

 Funded Unfunded 
 2014/15 
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Local Government Pension Scheme assets 
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 
 
�/�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���I�R�U���E�R�W�K���W�K�H���/�R�F�D�O���*�R�Y�H�U�Q�P�H�Q�W���3�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���6�F�K�H�P�H���D�Q�G���W�K�H���X�Q�I�X�Q�G�H�G���7�H�D�F�K�H�U�V�¶��
Pension Scheme have been assessed by Mercers Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an 
independent firm of actuaries.  The assessment has been on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will have to be paid in future years 
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�,�P�S�D�F�W���R�Q���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���&�D�V�K���)�O�R�Z�V 
 
�7�K�H���R�E�M�H�F�W�L�Y�H�V���R�I���W�K�H���V�F�K�H�P�H���D�U�H���W�R���N�H�H�S���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�V�¶���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V���D�W���D�V���F�R�Q�V�W�D�Q�W���D���U�D�W�H���D�V��
�S�R�V�V�L�E�O�H�������7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O���K�D�V���D�J�U�H�H�G���D���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�\���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���V�F�K�H�P�H�¶�V��actuary to achieve a funding 
level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.  The 
next triennial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2016 and will set contributions for 
the period for 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. 
 
The Council expects to pay £99.8m of contributions to the scheme in 2016/17 on the basis of 
�D�Q���H�T�X�L�Y�D�O�H�Q�W���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�¶�V���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q���U�D�W�H���R�I�����������������S�O�X�V���D�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O���S�D�\�P�H�Q�W���R�I���…���������P���W�R��
fund the pension deficit in respect of past service costs. 
 
 
 
Note 12 
Material Items of Income and Expense  and Acquired Operations  
 
On 1 May 2015, the Council completed the sale of its interests in the NEC Group to Lloyds 
Development Capital, the private equity arm of Lloyds Banking Group.  The Council received 
a payment of £250m to cover:  
 

�x the sale of equity in the National Exhibition Centre Limited; 
�x a premium for the sale of leasehold interests, detailed in Note 42; and 
�x 
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Note 13  
Other Operating Expenditure  
 
Other Operating Expenditure disclosed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is detailed below.   
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 
£m 

 
£m 

0.1 Parish Council Precepts - 
3.8 Enterprise Zone Growth Payment 5.5 

54.5 Integrated Transport Authority Levy 51.6 
0.3 Environment Agency Levy 0.3 
5.7 Payments re: Housing Capital Receipt Pool 6.6 

- Loss on Disposal of the NEC (ref Note G5) 59.2 
- (Gain) on Disposal of Grand Central (112.1) 

73.1 (Gains)/Losses on the Disposal of other non-
current assets 93.1 

137.5 Total  104.2 
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2014/15 
 

2015/16 
£m 

 
£m 

 Capital Grants   
29.7 Education Funding Agency (formerly DSCF fund) 62.1 

0.2 Demographic Growth - 
- Lottery 0.8 

2.0 Section 106/278 0.5 
4.0 Centro - 
3.4 Department of Health - Community Capacity 3.1 
8.7 Centro - Integrated Transport Block 5.2 

- Disabled Facilities 0.2 
2.2 European Regional Development Fund 0.8 
4.4 Homes & Community Agency - New Build Programme 3.3 
4.7 Department for Transport (inc. Cycle Ambition) 2.5 
1.0 Home and Communities Agency 0.7 
1.2 Growing Places 0.2 

- Local Growth Fund 14.4 
- 
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Note 18 
Dedicated Schools Grant  
 
�7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���H�[�S�H�Q�G�L�W�X�U�H���R�Q���V�F�K�R�R�O�V���L�V���I�X�Q�G�H�G���S�U�L�P�D�U�L�O�\���E�\���J�U�D�Q�W���P�R�Q�L�H�V���S�U�R�Y�L�G�H�G���E�\���W�K�H��
Education Funding Agency (EFA) through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  An element 
of DSG is recouped by the EFA to fund academy schools in Birmingham.  DSG is ringfenced 
and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget, as 
defined in the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2014.  The Schools 
Budget includes elements for a range of educational services provided on an authority-wide 
basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB), which is divided into a budget share for 
each maintained school. 
 
Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2015/16 are as follows: 
 

 Central 
Expenditure 

Individual 
Schools 
Budget 

Total  

  £m  £m  £m 

Final DSG for 2015/16 before academy 
recoupment 

106.1 968.9 1,075.0 

Academy figure recouped for 2015/16 
 

- (365.6) (365.6) 

Total DSG after Academy recoupment for 
2015/16 
 

106.1 603.3 709.4 

Plus: Brought forward from 2014/15 12.6 - 12.6 
Less: Carry forward to 2016/17 agreed in 
advance 

-
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Note 19 
Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 
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 £m 
 

£m £m £m £m £m £m 
Fees, charges and other service income (622.6) 

 
61.9 6.6 

 
(554.1) (61.2) (615.3) 

Support service recharges (390.1) 
 

(64.1) 
 

454.2 - 
 

- 
Collection Fund Surplus 

     
- (5.7) (5.7) 
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 £m 

PFI lifecycle costs 638.2 
Paradise Circus Enterprise Zone 57.7 
Corporate IT Investment 47.0 
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Recurring 
Fair Value 
Measurement 

Input Level 
in Fair Value 
Hierarchy 

Valuation Technique used to 
measure Fair Value 

31 March 
2015 Fair 

value 
£m 

31 March 
2016 Fair 

Value 
£m 

Highest and 
Best Use Level 2 

The fair value of investment 
property has been measured 
using a market approach, 
which takes into account 
quoted prices for similar assets 
in active markets, and data 
and market knowledge gained 
in managing the �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V��
property portfolio.  
 

10.8 10.0
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The Council has significant collections of assets that contribute towards the rich and diverse 
heritage of the City, reflecting two thousand years of historic development, across Museums, 
historic buildings, Public Art, Libraries and Civic collections. 
 
Where historical cost information is available, the Council has used this when compiling the 
balance sheet; otherwise insurance valuations have been used, where applicable. Where 
there is evidence of a movement in valuations as a result of material acquisitions or 
disposals, or a significant movement in comparable market values, a revaluation will be 
considered.  The Council estimated that, from its insurance records, the value of the Library 
�F�R�O�O�H�F�W�L�R�Q���Z�D�V���…���������P�����W�K�H���0�X�V�H�X�P�¶�V���F�R�O�O�H�F�W�L�R�Q���Z�D�V���…�����������P���D�Q�G���W�K�H���&�L�Y�L�F���5�H�J�D�O�L�D���Z�D�V��
£1.8m as at 1 April 2011.  The valuation of the Libraries and Archive collection has 
increased to £18.4m as at 31 March 2016. 
 
Museum Collections  
 
The Council holds collections of artworks, ceramics, jewellery and items of archaeological 
and scientific significance.  The vast majority of the Museums Loan collection is held within 
the Birmingham Museum and Art Gallery, which holds one of the finest collections of art, 
history and science in the UK and the best collection of Pre-Raphaelite works in the world. 
The collection itself includes a number of highly valued items including works of art in oil by 
the 19th Century artist Ford Madox Brown, together with substantial works by Burne-Jones, 
Holman Hunt, Bellini and Canaletto amongst others. There have been some significant 
additions to the collections, in particular the Staffordshire Hoard, the largest hoard of Anglo-
Saxon gold and silver metalwork yet found. There are significant exhibits and artwork 
comprising the Permanent Collection on display in community museums, for example Aston 
Ha
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Note 25 
Long Term Debtors  
 
The table below shows amounts owed to the Council that are due for repayment more than 
12 months after the Balance Sheet date. These balances have been split by type of debt.   
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

37.6 External Loans 45.2 
0.7 Employee Loans 0.8 

0.3 Mortgages: former Council House 
tenants 0.3 

39.0 Other debtors 28.7 

77.6 Total  75.0 
 

 
Note 26 
Short Term Investments  
 
Details of the amounts invested by the Council that are due for repayment within 12 months 
of the Balance Sheet date are detailed below.  The Other Investments for 2014/15 included 
those loans to the NEC that formed part of the disposal transaction. 
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

53.6   Money Market Funds  43.0  
20.2   Financial Institutions  15.8  

192.4   Other Investments  - 

266.2   Total  58.8  
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Note 28 
Short -Term Debtors  
 
The table below shows amounts owed to the council at the end of the year that are due for 
repayment within 12 months. These balances have been split by type of organisation.   
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

62.4 Central government bodies 60.2 
12.2 Other local authorities 8.2 
9.7 NHS bodies 5.0 
0.1 Public corporations and trading funds 1.7 

227.3 Other entities and individuals 212.9 

311.7 Total  288.0 
 
 
 
Note 29 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the elements detailed below.   
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

2.7 Cash held by the Council 2.9 
35.0 Bank current accounts 63.5 

(22.1) Bank Overdrafts (34.5) 

15.6 Total  31.9 
 

 
 
Note 30 
Short Term Creditors  
 
The table below shows amounts owed by the Council at the end of the year that are due for 
payment within 12 months, split by type of organisation. 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

(30.3) Central government bodies (40.3) 
(5.7) Other local authorities (5.8) 
(5.9) NHS bodies (3.8) 

(33.6) Public corporations and trading funds (36.2) 
(267.2) Other entities and individuals (237.3) 

(342.7) Total  (323.4) 
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Note 31 
Long Term Creditors  
 
The table below shows amounts owed by the Council at the end of the year that are due for 
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The Carbon Reduction Commitment 
 
In 2016/
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2. �7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�O���+�R�X�V�L�Q�J���%�H�Q�H�I�L�W���F�O�D�L�P�V���I�R�U��2014/15 and 2015/16 are still being 
considered by the Department for Work and Pensions.  There may be clawback of 
subsidy from the Council, above the level provided for in the accounts, which would 
reduce the level of benefit income shown and also reduce the General Fund balance 
carried forward. 
 

3. Under the Equal Pay Act 1970, as amended by the Equal Pay Act (Amendment) 
Regulations 2003, employees are entitled to equal pay for work of equal value.  The 
Council has received a number of claims under the Equal Pay Act and, as a result, 
has set aside a provision of £310.1m (31 March 2015: £561.6m) which incorporates 
all claims received and negotiations agreed to 29 February 2016.   
 
Whilst the provision reflects the forecast impact of claims made to date, there remain 
a number of uncertainties regarding any additional liabilities that the Council may 
face.  There are major uncertainties surrounding the volume and timing of future 
claims and the determination of any settlements.  The Council has developed a 
robust medium to long term financial plan, set out in Business Plan 2016+, which 
recognises the impact of future spending and funding requirements.  The Council 
also has the ability to use capital receipts generated from 1 April 2013 to meet equal 
pay costs.  
 

4. Local Authorities were entitled to charge, under Section 93(1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003 and subsequently the Local Authorities (Charges for Property 
Searches)(England) Regulations 2008, for personal searches of the Local Land 
Charges Register.  However, these charges were contrary to the Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004 which states that Public Authorities (such as the 
Council) are not able to charge for access to environmental data, which includes 
information held on the Local Land Charges Register.  Claims are being brought 
against Local Authorities for personal search fees charged between 1 January 2005 
and August 2010. The potential liability to the Council is estimated to be up to £0.5m, 
reflecting the fact that litigation is well advanced.  
 

5. The Council is facing a number of compensation claims from former employees for 
current health issues, from people who attended Council schools and from other 
service users.  Currently the validity of any claims is being assessed. 
 

6. The Council received insurance services from Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI).  
Due to financial difficulties, MMI ceased trading in October 1993 and entered into a 
solvent run off.  MMI entered into a Scheme of Arrangement with its creditors, 
namely the Councils which were owed claim settlements.  The Scheme of 
Arrangement stated that MMI would be able to claw back any claim settlements paid 
on behalf of its creditors after 1 October 1993 if a solvent run off was not likely to be 
achieved.   
 
Following a decision of the Supreme Court in March 2012 regarding Employers�¶ 
�/�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�\���3�R�O�L�F�\���7�U�L�J�J�H�U���/�L�W�L�J�D�W�L�R�Q�����0�0�,�¶�V���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�\���L�Q���U�H�V�S�H�F�W���R�I���D�V�E�H�V�W�R�V���U�H�O�D�W�H�G���F�O�D�L�P�V��
has substantially increased.  As a result, the Scheme of Arrangement was enacted in 
2014/15 and an Administrator has been appointed.   
 
At present, the Administrator has announced a levy of 15% on claims paid since 1 
October 1993 and the Council has incurred costs of £0.4m to cover its share together 
with a share, based on population, of the claims paid in respect of the former West 
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Note 35 
Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities  
 
The cash flows from operating activities include the following items: 
 
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 
£m 

 
£m 

(16.3) Interest received (9.9) 
185.6  Interest paid 184.3  
(6.2) Dividends received (20.8) 

163.1  
 

153.6  
 
 
 
 
Note 36 
Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities  
 
The cash flows from investing activities include the following: 
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 
£m 

 
£m 

(325.1) 
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Note 38  
Cash Flow  Statement �± Other Adjustments  
 
The cash flow adjustments to the net surplus/deficit on the provision of services include: 
 
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 

£m 
 

£m 
144.8 Depreciation/Impairment charge 129.4 

25.7 Amortisation of Intangible Assets 7.5 
34.6 Amortisation of Financial Instruments - 

- (Increase)/decrease in investments (0.9) 
46.7 Revaluation of Non-Current Assets 37.7 

140.9 Derecognition of Non-Current Assets 403.0 
(82.8) (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 26.3 
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Material Soft Loans Made by the Council 
The Council has made the following material soft loans: 
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2014/15 2015/16 
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The fair values of financial assets are calculated as follows: 
 
 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 
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 £m £m £m £m 
Investments 271.8 271.8 64.6 64.6 
Debtors 269.1 272.4 246.0 247.5 
Total  540.9 544.2 310.6 312.1 
 
The fair value of the 
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�µ�6�S�H�F�L�I�L�H�G�¶���V�K�R�U�W���W�H�U�P��
investments (all in Sterling)  

Short term 
rating*  

Long term 
rating*  

Council  
Individual lending 

limit  
Banks (including overseas 
banks) and Building Societies  

F1+ /A1+ /P1 AA- /AA- /Aa3 £25m 
F1+ /A1+ /P1 A-  / A-   /A3 £20m 
F1   /A1   /P1 A-   / A-    /A3 £15m 
F2   /A2   /P2 BBB+ /BBB+ 

/Baa1 
£10m 

Sterling commercial paper and 
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Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate 
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services or 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and 
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus/(Deficit)  
on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair 
value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 
These risks are measured and �P�D�Q�D�J�H�G���L�Q���D�F�F�R�U�G�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���7�U�H�D�V�X�U�\��
Management Strategy, including the setting and monitoring of risk limits on the level of 
variable rate instruments and on the amount of borrowing maturing in future years. 
 
At 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, 
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 Finance Lease Debtor Minimum lease payments 
 31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2016 
 £m £m £m £m 

Not later than one year 0.1 - 2.3 1.5 
Later than one year and not later 
than five years 0.1 0.1 9.0 6.0 

Later than five years 36.7 26.9 229.2 174.7 
Total  36.9 27.0 240.5 182.2 
 
The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking 
place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  In 
2015/16 £1.2m contingent rents were receivable by the Council (2014/15 £1.1m). 
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Note 43 
Service Concession Arrangements  
 
The Council has entered into a number of PFI 



Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

113 
 

payments made as appropriate.   
 
The Council continues to have full use of the roads and roadside furniture during the 
period of the arrangement, at the end of which all rights revert to the Council.  There 
are no early terminations or period clauses within the PFI arrangement.  There have 
been no changes in the arrangement during 2015/16. 
 

 
Payments remaining as at 31 
March 2016 Interest Repayment 

of liability 
Payment for 

services 
Total  

 £m £m £m £m 
Payable in 2016/17 35.7 17.1 73.1 125

      £m£m 
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Note 45 
Officers' Remuneration  
 
�7�K�H���U�H�P�X�Q�H�U�D�W�L�R�Q���S�D�L�G���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���V�H�Q�L�R�U���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�H�V���L�V��detailed in the table below.  The 
�S�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V���I�R�U�������������������K�D�Y�H���E�H�H�Q���U�H�V�W�D�W�H�G���W�R���V�K�R�Z���R�Q�O�\���W�K�H���I�X�W�X�U�H���\�H�D�U�V�¶��
contributions.  The payments made by the Council to recover past service cost deficits have 
traditionally been included in the overall Council superannuation rate but should be excluded 
from this disclosure. 
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Remuneration includes salary, allowances, bonuses and compensation for loss of 
employment. 
 
�7�K�H���µ�2�W�K�H�U���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O���(�P�S�O�R�\�H�H�V�¶���I�L�J�X�U�H�V���L�Q���W�K�H���D�E�R�Y�H���W�D�E�O�H���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�H�V���Z�L�W�K���S�O�D�Q�Q�H�G��
termination payments, 46 in 2015/16 (75 in 2014/15).  Excluding employees in receipt of 
planned termination payments, 397 employees in 2015/16 (362 in 2014/15) received 
remuneration of £50,000 or more. 
 
The number of Teaching Staff and Staff in Schools reflect those staff employed the Council 
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Expenditure met from the pooled budget    
Birmingham City Council 96.7 98.9  
Bromsgrove District Council    0.2 
Cannock Chase District Council    0.3 
East Staffordshire Borough Council    0.1 
Lichfield District Council    0.2 
Redditch Borough Council 0.1   0.4 
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council  0.8 
Tamworth Borough Council  0.2 
GBS LEP  2.0 
Safety Net Contingency  0.2 
 96.8 103.3 
 
The 2014/15 figures shown in the table above are the final, post-audit outturn figures.  
 
The information in the table above is based on information available at the time of compiling 
the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. On finalisation of the business rates income (post 
audit), it is possible that there will be a change to income to be re-allocated, but this is not 
expected to be of a material nature overall.   
 
The Pool will continue in future years until such time that a member serves the appropriate 
notice period of its intention to leave. 
 
 
Other Public Bodies - Pooled Budgets 
The Council is in a pooled budget arrangement with the Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) covering the Birmingham area, namely, Birmingham Cross City CCG, Birmingham 
South Central CCG and Sandwell 
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The Better Care Fund 
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) was announced in June 2013 with the intention to drive the 
transformation of local care services and was to be operated through pooled budget 
arrangements between the Council and local Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs).  
Specific resources were earmarked for the BCF by NHS England in its allocation to Clinical 
Commissioning Groups.  The remainder of the fund was made up of the Social Care Capital 
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Service Provision Budgeted 

Activity 
£m 

Nature of Arrangement 

Bed Based Additional Provision 1.358 Lead Commissioning �± Council 
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 Expenditure  Income  Debtor 

balance at 
year end  

Creditor 
balance at 
year end  

 £m £m £m £m 
Acivico Limited 48.4 11.5 15.4 7.3 
Birmingham Museums Trust 7.3 2.3 0.2 0.8 
Innovation Birmingham Limited 6.8 0.3 0.1 - 
The National Exhibition Centre 
(Developments) 92.2 0.2 - 0.1 

The National Exhibition Centre 
Limited (until 1 May 2015) - 0.5 - - 

Performances (Birmingham) 
Limited 2.7 0.9 - 0.2 

PETPS (Birmingham) Limited 7.6 - - - 
 
 
The associates that have been consolidated into the group financial statements are listed 
below: 

 Expenditure  Income  Creditor 
balance at 
year end  

Debtor 
balance at 
year end  

 £m £m £m £m 
Birmingham Airport Holdings 
Limited (BAH) 0.2 21.3 0.2 2.3 

Paradise Circus General Limited 18.2 4.4 - 2.8 
Service Birmingham Limited 96.6 18.4 4.0 1.9 
 
 
The Council also has relationships with a number of other companies and third party 
�R�U�J�D�Q�L�V�D�W�L�R�Q�V���Z�K�H�U�H���W�K�H���D�V�V�H�W�V���D�Q�G���O�L�D�E�L�O�L�W�L�H�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���K�R�O�G�L�Q�J���L�V���Q�R�W���P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O���W�R���W�K�H��
Group Accounts or where the Council has representation and influence on the board of the 
organisation but has no claim on the assets and liabilities of the organisation.  Details of the 
organisation and its relationship to the Council are set out in the tables below. 
 
Organisations where the Council has 100% share ownership of the company but the level of 
�D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�\���L�V���Q�R�W���P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���*�U�R�X�S���$�F�F�R�X�Q�W�V are detailed below.  Those 
organisations highlighted with an asterisk had transactions with the Council in excess of 
£0.1m in 2015/16. 
 
Birmingham Business Support Centre 
Limited Finance Birmingham Limited 

Birmingham Brand Care Limited Gallery 37 Foundation* 

Birmingham Venture Capital Limited Greater Birmingham and West Midlands Brussels 
Office* 

Birmingham Endeavour Limited* INReach (Birmingham) Limited 
Creative Advantage West Midlands 
Limited Library of Birmingham Development Trust 

 
Entities where the Council has some influence 
 
Organisations, including associated subsidiaries, where the Council is a minority shareholder 
of the company and the level of activity is not �P�D�W�H�U�L�D�O���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���*�U�R�X�S���$�F�F�R�X�Q�W�V���D�U�H��
detailed below.  Those organisations highlighted with an asterisk had transactions with the 
Council in excess of £0.1m in 2015/16. 
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Business Improvement Districts (BID) are business led partnerships, created to deliver 
additional services to local businesses.  A BID covers a defined area in which a levy is 
charged on all business rate payers, which is then used to develop projects that will benefit 
business within the area.  The Council has member representation on BIDs within the 
Birmingham area as detailed below. Those organisations highlighted with an asterisk had 
transactions with the Council in excess of £0.1m in 2015/16. 
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�x retain any interest generated as a result of the provision of state funds; 
�x use the state funds in any way other than as provided for in the offer letter. 

 
The Council acts as accountable body for the resources provided on behalf of the Greater 
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Housing Revenue Account  - 
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Notes to the Housing Revenue Account  
 
H1. Housing Stock  
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H7. Contribution from Pension Reserve  
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes pension costs calculated 
in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 as described in detail in Note 
11 to the Financial Statements.  To ensure that these costs do not affect the level of HRA 
balances and Council House rents, an appropriation is made from the Pensions Reserve so 
�W�K�D�W���W�K�H���P�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W���L�Q���E�D�O�D�Q�F�H�V���R�Q�O�\���U�H�I�O�H�F�W�V���W�K�H���D�F�W�X�D�O���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�¶�V���S�H�Q�V�L�R�Q���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q������ 
 
H8. Rent Arrears  
 
Rent arrears from current tenants at 31 March 2016 



Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

135 
 

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account  
 
The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account reflects the statutory requirement for 
the Council to maintain a separate Collection Fund for Council Tax and National Non 
Domestic Rates (NNDR).  The statement shows transactions in relation to the collection of 
income from tax payers and the distribution to major preceptors and the Council itself, as 
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Notes to the Collection Fund  
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C2. Business Ratepayers  
 
The Council collects National Non-Domestic Rates for its area, which are based on local 
rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate which is set by the Government (48.0p for 
2015/16: 47.1p for 2014/15).  The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2016 was 
£1,068.10m (31 March 2015: £1,061.89m).  Under the National Non-Domestic Rates 
Retention Scheme the amount raised each year, less certain reliefs and adjustments, is 
distributed on the following basis: 
 

�x 50% - Central Government; 
�x 49% - Birmingham City Council; 
�x   1% - The West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority. 

 
 
C3. Precept Payments  
 
The preceptors on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund are the City Council, New 
Frankley in Birmingham Parish Council, the West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority and 
the West Midlands Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 
The preceptors on the National Non-Domestic Rates 
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Statement of GROUP Accounts 2015/16 
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Narrative Report  
 
 
1 Introduction  

 
1.1 This document presents the statutory financial statements for Birmingham City 

Council Group for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016.  The financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (The Code) published by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The aim of the 
Group Accounts is to provide the reader with an overall view of the material economic 
activities of the Council. 
 

1.2 In common with many other local authorities, the Council uses different forms of 
service delivery, where this is appropriate. In some cases it has created separate 
companies with its partners to deliver those services. The use of separate companies 
and t�U�X�V�W�V���P�H�D�Q�V���W�K�D�W���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���V�L�Q�J�O�H���H�Q�W�L�W�\���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���R�Q���W�K�H�L�U���R�Z�Q���G�R��
not fully reflect the assets and liabilities or income and expenditure associated with all 
of its activities. The Group Accounts more fully reflect the overall financial picture of 
�W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�L�H�V�� 
 

1.3 These Group Accounts have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The accounting policies of the 
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities have been aligned with the 
policies of the Council, for the purposes of Group Accounts, where materially 
different. Such adjustments as are necessary to align the Group Accounting policies 
are made as consolidation adjustments. 
 

1.4 �7�K�L�V���Q�D�U�U�D�W�L�Y�H���U�H�S�R�U�W���S�U�R�Y�L�G�H�V���D���V�X�P�P�D�U�\���R�I���W�K�H���*�U�R�X�S�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���S�R�V�L�W�L�R�Q���D�Q�G���G�H�W�D�L�O�V��
of material items that have impacted on the accounts during the year. 
 

1.5 The financial statements contain a number of technical accounting terms and 
concepts.  A glossary of the major accounting terms has been provided at the end of 
�W�K�H���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���W�R���K�H�O�S���W�K�H���U�H�D�G�H�U�¶�V���X�Q�G�H�U�V�W�D�Q�G�L�Q�J�� 
 

1.6 The pages which fo�O�O�R�Z���F�R�Q�W�D�L�Q���W�K�H���*�U�R�X�S�¶�V���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���I�R�U���W�K�H���\�H�D�U���H�Q�G�H�G��
31 March 2016, with comparative figures for the previous financial year. 
 
 

2 Consolidation of Subsidiary and Associate Companies  
 

2.1
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 2014/15 2015/16 
 Entity Group Entity Group 
 £m £m £m £m 
Long Term Assets 5,156.3 5,200.2 5,247.9 5,252.2 
Current Assets 685.4 709.8 418.6 428.2 
Current Liabilities (1,301.1) (1,368.2) (1,071.7) (1,077.7) 
Long Term Liabilities (5,768.6) (5,881.5) 
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
 
This statement shows the income and expenditure recognised by the Group during the 
reporting period.  Discontinued operations relate to the disposal of NEC Ltd on 1 May 2015. 
 

2014/15 
  

2015/16 
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Group Cash Flow Statement  
 
The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 
Group during the reporting period.  The Group cash flow figures for 2014/15 have been 
restated to recognise those activities related to discontinued operations in respect of the sale 
of NEC Group Limited.   
 

2014/15 
(Restated) 

 

Note 2015/16 

£m 
  

£m 

(34.7) Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the provision of 
services  91.2 

286.6 Adjustments to net Surplus/Deficit on the 
provision of services for non-cash movements  443.0 

(122.9) 
Adjustments for items included in the net 
Surplus/(Deficit) on the provision of services 
that are investing and financing activities  (693.0) 

25.3 Net cash flow from operating activities related 
to discontinued operations  0.2 

154.3 Net cash flows from Operating Activities   (158.6) 
(251.1) Investing Activities G16 270.2 

92.1 Financing Activities G17 (84.6) 

(4.7) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents   27.0 

25.7 Cash and cash equivale1 0 0 1 
1 04BT

/F3 11

 /P64(he)3( )-4(sal)6(e )] TJ

ET

be(t)-4(ho)ope(t)-4(ho)ope(t)-4(ho)ope(t)-4(ho)ope(t)-4(ho)ope(ho)ope1 0 0 n

BT04 Tf

1 0 0 1 205.61 47 Tm

0 g
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS 
 
 
Note G1 
Accounting Policies  
 
�7�K�H���*�U�R�X�S���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O���6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V���V�X�P�P�D�U�L�V�H���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���D�Q�G���*�U�R�X�S�¶�V���W�U�D�Q�V�D�F�W�L�R�Q�V���I�R�U���W�K�H��
2015/16 financial year.  The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16, 
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
Members within the Group have been classified as either subsidiaries or associates with 
details included in respect of the classification within Notes G24 and G25.  Subsidiaries have 
been consolidated into the Group Financial Statements on a line by line basis, with 
associates consolidated under the equity method. 
 
Investments in associates are carried at cost rather than fair value. 
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Defined Contribution Pension Schemes  
 
The NEC Limited Group funded two defined benefit schemes, which ceased to provide 
future service accrual with effect from 30 June 2010 and operated two contributory benefit 
schemes comprising a Stakeholder Scheme to which only members contribute, and a Group 
Personal Pension Plan where the company matched member contributions to an agreed 
maximum. The schemes transferred to PETPS (Birmingham) Limited on 1 May 2015 on the 
�&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���G�L�V�S�R�V�D�O���R�I���1�(�&���/�W�G�������)�X�U�W�K�H�U���L�Q�I�R�U�P�D�W�L�R�Q���P�D�\���E�H���I�R�X�Q�G���L�Q���1�R�W�H���*��1. 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme  
 
Acivico Limited and Birmingham Museums Trust participate in the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The scheme is a funded defined benefit scheme based upon 
career average salary for benefits accrued since 1 April 2014 and on final pensionable salary 
for benefits accrued to 31 March 2014.  Further information may be found within the 
�&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶s entity accounting policies and Note G21. 
 
 
Note G2 
Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies  
 
National Exhibition Centre 
 
On 16 January 2015, the Council announced that it had entered into a binding agreement for 
the disposal of The National Exhibition Centre Limited (NEC Ltd) to Lloyds Development 
Capital, the private equity arm of Lloyds Banking Group.  
 
The Council considered the criteria within IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations, and determined that the tests for recognition of the assets and 
liabilities within the Balance Sheet as a disposal group in Assets Held for Sale were met at 
the 2014/15 Balance Sheet Date. The Council, therefore, recognised those NEC assets and 
liabilities subject to the disposal as Assets Held for Sale at the year end, which required a 
transfer from their previous Balance Sheet categories.    
 
The disposal of the assets related to the NEC Group within the Council entity accounts and 
the subsidiaries consolidated within the Group accounts have been treated as one 
transaction on consolidation. 
 
Other critical judgements relating to the Council in applying Accounting Policies are provided 
in Note 3 to the Council entity accounts. 
 
There are no additional material judgements to report in respect of the remaining Group 
Entities. 
 
 
Note G3 
Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty  
 
Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation and uncertainty are 
provided in Note 4 to the Council entity accounts. 
 
There are no additional material assumptions to report in respect of the remaining Group 
Entities. 
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Note G4 
Discontinued Operations  
 
In January 2015, the Council announced that it had entered into a binding agreement to 
dispose of the NEC Group to Lloyds Development Capital, the private equity arm of Lloyds 
Banking Group. 
 
The sale was completed on 1 May 2015 and the City Council received a cash payment of 
£250m to cover: 
 

�x The sale of its equity in The National Exhibition Centre Limited (NECL); 
�x A premium for the sale of leasehold interests as detailed in note 42 to the 

Council entity accounts; 
�x Net income from operations of the NEC Group until completion of the sale. 

 
The Council may also receive, depending on the performance and any future sale of the 
NEC Group, additional consideration comprising deferred purchase consideration of £15m in 
the form of a loan note with a compounding yield of 8% per annum, up to £12m in respect of 
accumulated tax losses which will be remitted to the Council by the NEC Group as these 
losses are utilised and an entitlement to proceeds equivalent to 3% of the equity value of any 
future sale of the NEC Group.  Given the uncertainty regarding any future payments, the 
potential receipts have been treated as a contingent asset within the Council entity accounts. 
 
The gain on disposal of the discontinued operations was determined as follows: 
 
 

  2015/16  
  £m  

Consideration Received   224.8  
    
Net cost of disposal  (5.1)  
Net disposal proceeds   219.7  
    
Assets/Liabilities disposed of:    
Tangible Assets  285.1  
Debtors  38.9  
Short Term Creditors  (104.0)  
Long Term Liabilities  (86.7)  
Total Net Assets/Liabilities   133.3  
    
Gain on disposal of subsidiary   86.4  
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Note G6 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  
 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure disclosed in the Group Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement comprises the following.   
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 

Gross 
Expenditure Income Net 

 

Gross 
Expenditure Income Net 

£m £m £m 
 

£m £m 
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Movements on Balances: 2014/15 (Restated) 
 

 C
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£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Cost or Valuation  
         At 1 April 2014  1,769.8 2,689.4 280.2 540.0 89.5 - 189.7 5,558.6 581.7 

Additions 135.1 74.9 23.8 56.8 1.5 - 98.8 390.9 71.2 
Assets reclassified between 
categories - 13.2 0.3 10.7 0.2 - (24.3) 0.1 - 

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held 
for Sale - (220.1) - - - - - (220.1) - 

Revaluation increases/ 
(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

- 55.6 (6.8) - - - - 48.8 (7.5) 

Revaluation increases/ 
(decreases) recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

(73.3) (120.4) (10.1) - - - (4.4) (208.2) (4.0) 

Derecognition - Disposals (17.7) (128.4) (68.3) - - - - (214.4) (0.2) 
Derecognition - other (3.1)   (131.3) (0.5)   

(134.9) - 
Other movements in cost or 
valuation - (10.8) - - - - - (10.8) - 

At 31 March 2015  1,810.8 2,353.4 219.1 476.2 90.7 - 259.8 5,210.0 641.2 

          Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment  

         At 1 April 2014  (109.7) (157.7) (145.4) (147.0) - -
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Note G9 
Assets Held for Sale  
 
The following table shows the value of assets whose carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use.
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Note G10 
Financial Instruments  
 
Investments 
The following short term investments are brought into the Group Financial Statements upon 
group consolidation: 
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Note G11 
Short Term Debtors  
 
�7�K�H���W�D�E�O�H���E�H�O�R�Z���V�K�R�Z�V���D�P�R�X�Q�W�V���R�Z�H�G���W�R���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���*�U�R�X�S���X�Q�G�H�U�W�D�N�L�Q�J���D�W���W�K�H���H�Q�G���R�I���W�K�H��
year that are due within 12 months.  These balances have been split by type of organisation. 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 

£m 
 

£m 
62.4 Central government bodies 48.6 

12.2 Other local authorities 19.7 

9.7 NHS bodies 5.0 

0.1 Public corporations and trading funds 1.7 

217.3 Other entities and individuals 206.2 

301.7 Total  281.2 
 
 
 
Note G12 
Short Term Creditors   
 
The table below shows amounts owed by the Council Group undertaking at the end of the 
year that are due within 12 months, split by type of organisation.   
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 

£m 
 

£m 
(30.3) Central government bodies (40.3) 

(5.7) Other local authorities (5.8) 

(5.9) NHS bodies (3.8) 

(33.6) Public corporations and trading funds (36.2) 

(263.4) Other entities and individuals (243.3) 

(338.9) Total  (329.4) 
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Note G14 
Unusable Reserves  
 
The following table shows the value of Group reserve balances that have come about as a 
result of accounting adjustments and are not therefore available to spend.   
 
 

31 March 2015 
 

31 March 2016 
£m 

 
£m 

787.2 Revaluation Reserve 983.1 

271.4 Capital Adjustment Account (290.8) 

(29.7) 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account 

(27.9) 

50.1 Deferred Capital Receipts 30.0 

(2,356.1) Pensions Reserve (2,087.7) 

(13.8) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (22.9) 

(561.3) Equal Pay Back Pay Account 
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2014/15   2015/16 
 £m 

 
£m 

852.0  Balance at 1 April
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Note G16 
Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities  
 
The cash flows from investing activities are set out below.  The figures for 2014/15 have 
been restated to reflect the amount that relates to discontinued operations as a result of the 
sale of NEC Group Limited. 
 

2014/15 
(Restated)   2015/16 

£m 
 

£m 

(326.8) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 

(326.8) 

(3,191.8) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (3,289.0) 

57.9  
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

355.2 

- Proceeds from the sale of subsidiary (NEC Group) 224.8 

3,228.1  Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 3,305.4 

0.3  Other receipts from investing activities 0.6 

(18.8) Investing activities relating to discontinued operations - 

(251.1) Net cash flows from investing activities  270.2 
 
 
 
Note G17 
Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities  
 
The cash flows from financing activities are set out below.  The figures for 2014/15 have 
been restated to reflect the amount that relates to discontinued operations as a result of the 
sale of NEC Group Limited. 
 
 

2014/15 
(Restated)   2015/16 

 £m  £m 
57.3  Other receipts from financing activities 103.7 

2,069.8  Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing
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Note G18 
Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions (Segmental Analysis)  
 
Detail of the �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V Segmental Analysis is provided in Note 19 to the entity accounts.   
 
Net expenditure reported to Cabinet detailed within Note 19 to the Council entity accounts is 
unchanged by the consolidation of the group entities and has therefore been excluded.  The 
Segmental Analysis reconciliation to both the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement and the Counc�L�O�¶�V���6�X�E�M�H�F�W�L�Y�H���$�Q�D�O�\�V�L�V���D�U�H���D�V���I�R�O�O�R�Z�V�� 
 
Reconciliation of Directorate Net Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Group CIES 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 

 £m £m 
Net expenditure 1,021.3 913.6 
Amounts in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not 
reported to Cabinet in the Analysis 75.5 (34.8) 

Amounts in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
related to Group Accounts Consolidation not reported to Cabinet in the Analysis (16.5) (7.9) 

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Group Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

(215.5) (26.1) 

Cost of Services in Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement  864.8 844.8 

 
Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 

2015/16 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

A
na

ly
si

s
 

 A
m

ou
nt

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

bu
t w

ith
in

 C
IE

S
 

A
m

ou
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

bu
t n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

IE
S

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 





Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

163 
 

Note G19 
Related Parties  
 
Details of the Council's material transactions with related parties are provided in Note 48 to 
the Council entity accounts. 
 
In addition to the related parties detailed within Note 48 to the Council entity accounts those 
included below are deemed to be related parties of the Group �± bodies or individuals with 
the potential to control or significantly influence the Group entities or to be controlled or 
significantly influenced by the Group entities. Where in-year transactions and outstanding 
balances between Group entities and associated related parties are £1m or greater, they are 
disclosed below.  The Group entities and their relationships with the Council are detailed in 
Notes G24 and G25. 
 
 Purchased 

From 
Sold 

To 
Net amount Due 

(To)/From 
 £m £m £m 

The National Exhibition Centre (Developments) P lc  
Performances Birmingham Limited     
Performances Birmingham (Enterprises) Limited - - - 
Innovation Birmingham Limited  

   Birmingham Science Park Aston Limited - 0.4 - 
Birmingham Technology (Property) Limited 0.4 - - 
Birmingham Technology (Property One) Limited 0.0 - - 
Birmingham Technology Venture Capital Limited 0.0 - - 
Birmingham Museums Trust  

   Thinktank Trust    
Birmingham Museums Trading Limited - - - 
Acivico L imi ted    
Acivico Design Construction and Facilities 
Management Limited    
Acivico (Building Consultancy) Limited    
PETPS (Birmingham) Limited     
Paradise Circus General Partner Limited     
Paradise Circus Nominee 1 Limited    
Paradise Circus Nominee 2 Limited    
Birmingham Airport Holdings Limited     
West Midlands District Councils via (Solihull MBC) 0.7 - (4.7) 
Solihull MBC Solihull MBC is the local authority for the airport 

and transacts with the Company in a number of 
areas including business rates, planning 
applications and building control services.  All of 
these transactions are carried out on an arms 
length basis at a full commercial rate. 
 

National Exhibition Centre Limited (disposed of on 1 May 2015) 
National Exhibition Centre (Ireland) Limited - 

 
 

NEC Finance Plc - - (0.0) 
NEC Pension Trustee Company Limited - - - 
NEC Property (Number One) Limited   
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Note G21 
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes  
 
Details of the Council's involvement in the Teachers' Pensions Scheme and Local 
Government Pension Scheme are provided in Notes 10 and 11 to the Council entity 
accounts. 
 
PETPS (Birmingham) Limited 
Following completion of the sale of the NEC Group by the Council on 1 May 2015, NEC 
Limited was replaced as principal employer by PETPS (Birmingham) Limited (PETPS), a 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, which assumed the ongoing funding obligation of the 
NEC Limited Pension Fund (the Fund) and the NEC Executive Pension Scheme (the 
Scheme) with the agreement of the pension trustees.  The Fund and the Scheme had 
ceased to provide future service accrual with effect from 30 June 2010. 
 
The Fund and the Scheme are defined benefit schemes, operating under UK trust law, which 
pay out pensions at retirement based on service and final pay.  The trustee boards of the 
Fund and the Scheme are independent of the Council and are responsible for setting certain 
policies (for example, investment and contribution policies). 
 
Under the guarantees provided, the Council is responsible for meeting the current and future 
contingent funding obligations. The Fund and the Scheme therefore expose the Council to 
actuarial risks, such as longevity, currency, interest rate and market (investment) risk. 
 
The assets of the Fund and the Scheme are held separately from those of PETPS and the 
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  2014/15 2015/16  
  £m £m  
 Operating Cost s:    
 Administration Expenses - 0.4  
 Current Service Cost - -  
 Included in Operating Cost - 0.4  
     
 Financing Costs:     
 Interest cost on pension scheme liabilities 6.5 5.9  
 Interest income on plan assets (5.5) (5.3)  
 Net interest cost 1.0 0.6  
     
 Total income statement expense  1.0 1.0  
 
 
 
Other Comprehensive Income 
 
The amounts recognised in PETPS�¶ Other Comprehensive Income and consolidated into the 
Group Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income are as follows: 
 
  2014/15 2015/16  
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Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: 
 
  2014/15 2015/16  
  £m £m  
 Beginning of Period 128.2 141.2  
 Interest income on plan assets 5.5 5.3  
 Return on plan assets in excess on interest 

income 10.1 (4.1) 











Birmingham City Council
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Note G22 
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Note G23 
Analysis of Minority Interest Shares in Group Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and Total Movement in Balance Sheet  
 
This analysis is not intended as an analysis of the movement in the Minority Interest balance 
recorded in the balance sheet and so does not include such opening balances. 
 

2014/15   
 

2015/16 

Council 
Minority 

Interests Total  Council 
Minority 

interests Total 

£m £m £m  £m £m £m 

    
 

   
41.0 - 41.0 

(Surplus)/Deficit on the 
provision of services 

(84.8) - (84.8) 

(6.3) - (6.3) Share of Associates (6.4) - (6.4) 

468.6 - 468.6 
Other Comprehensive 
(Income)/Expenditure 

(463.2) - (463.2) 

503.3 - 503.3 
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The year end of the charity is 31 March 2016. For the purposes of the consolidation these 
accounts have been used.  There was no qualification to the audit opinion on the last 
audited accounts of this charity. 
 
Information regarding transactions during the year and balances held at the year end 
between the Council and Performances Birmingham Limited Group can be found within Note 
48 of the Council entity accounts. 
 
 
 
IV. Birmingham Museums Trust  
 
Birmingham Museums Trust Group is a Charity that manages nine museum sites, namely, 
Birmingham Museum and Art Gallery, The Museum Collection Centre, Thinktank, Soho 
House, Aston Hall, Museum of the Jewellery Quarter, Blakesley Hall, Weoley Castle and 
Sarehole Mill. The Trust is a  charitable company limited by guarantee, (the Council being 
sole member), and is controlled by the board of trustees  The financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with the Charity Commission's Statement of Recommended 
Practice, which restricts the use of funds to charitable purposes, as defined in its objects.  
The net income for the year for the group to 31 March 2016, amounted to £0.3m (2014/15: 
£0.03m), with the net assets at the 31 March 2016 amounting to £4.8m (2014/15: £3.8m). 
 
The year end of the charity is 31 March 2016 and for the purposes of consolidation these 
accounts have been used.  There was no qualification to the audit opinion on the last 





Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

178 
 

The year end of the Group was 31 March 2015. For the purposes of the consolidation these 
group accounts were used for the 2014/15 financial year and management information was 
used up to the date of disposal for inclusion in the 2015/16 financial statements.  There was 
no qualification to the audit opinion on the last audited accounts of the group. 
 
Information regarding transactions during the year and balances at the year end between the 
Council and the National Exhibition Centre Limited Group can be found within Note 48 of the 
Council entity accounts.
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31 March 2015  31 March 2016  
£m  £m  

451.6 Non-Current Assets 471.5  
39.9 Current Assets 132.5  

(48.2) Current Liabilities (135.2)  
(244.3) Non-Current Liabilities (342.8)  

199.0 Net Assets 126.0  
    

37.2 Council Interest in Net 
Assets @ 18.68%  23.5  

    
121.0 Revenue  130.5  

    
15.3 Post-Tax Profit/(Loss)  35.6  

(80.6) Other Comprehensive 
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II. Service Birmingham Limited  
 
The company was incorporated on 22 December 2005 and operates between Capita 
Business Services Limited, who hold 650 Ordinary-B shares (68%), and Birmingham City 
Council who hold 300 Ordinary-A shares (32%). The company was formed to facilitate the 
strategic partnership between the two entities and operates within the ICT and Advisory 
Services division of the Capita Group Plc.  Trading commenced on 1 April 2006, with the 
principal activity being the provision of ICT and business transformation outsourcing services 
to the Council. 
 
The year end of the company is 31 December 2015, in line with that of its parent company 
Capita Plc.  For the purposes of the consolidation these accounts have been used as they 
�I�D�O�O���Z�L�W�K�L�Q���W�K�U�H�H���P�R�Q�W�K�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���\�H�D�U���H�Q�G�����Zith adjustments being made for the three 
month periods at the start and end of the reporting year.  There was no qualification on the 
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The year end of the company was 30 June 2015. For the purposes of the consolidation 
these accounts have been used and supplemented by management accounts information for 
the nine month period to 31 March 2016.  There was no qualification on the audit opinion for 
the last audited accounts of the company. 
 
Following adjustments to the financial information to align accounting policies with those of 
the Council, in accordance with the principles of equity accounting under the Code, the 
summarised financial information for the associate for the year ended 31 March is as follows: 
 
 
31 March 2015  31 March 2016  

£m  £m  
- Non-Current Assets 6.7  
- Current Assets 13.9  
- Current Liabilities (14.3)  
- Non-Current Liabilities (6.8)  
- Net Assets (0.5)  
    

- Council Interest in Net 
Assets @ 50%  (0.25)  

    
- Revenue  17.4  
    

- Post-Tax Profit/(Loss)  (0.5)  

- Other Comprehensive 
Income/(Expenditure) -  

- Total Comprehensive 
Income/(Expenditure) (0.5)  

 
The carrying value of the Council�¶�V interest in this entity is a net deficit of £0.25m (2014/15: 
£nil), which is included within the Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures balance of 
£24.9m (2014/15: £38.9m), shown in the Group Balance Sheet. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 
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Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 
 

1. Scope of responsibility  
 

1.1. Birmingham City Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and 
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under 
the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to 
a combination of economy, efficiency, and effectiveness. 

 
1.2. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting 

in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions, and including arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

 
1.3. The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, 

which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.  A copy of the code is 
�D�Y�D�L�O�D�E�O�H�� �D�V�� �S�D�U�W�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V�� �Z�H�E�V�L�W�H���� �� �7�K�L�V�� �V�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�� �H�[�S�O�D�L�Q�V�� �K�R�Z�� �W�K�H��
Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6 (1)(b) which requires all 
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2.4. 









Birmingham City Council                                                          





Birmingham City Council                                                          Accounts for the Year Ended 31 March 2016 
 

 

191 
 

Scrutiny, Accountability and Risk Management  
 

3.29. The Overview & Scrutiny Committees cover all Cabinet Member portfolios and 
the Districts collectively.  All Executive decisions can be called in for Scrutiny 
to ensure that they are soundly based and consistent with Council policy.   
 

3.30. The Council has a procedure for handling complaints, compliments, and 
comments that monitors formal contact with members of the public.  
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3.34. Legal requirements and Council policy, together with guidance on their 

implementation, are set out in detail in the Policies, Standards, Procedures 
�D�Q�G�� �*�X�L�G�D�Q�F�H�� �G�D�W�D�E�D�V�H�� �K�H�O�G�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V�� �L�Q�W�U�D�Q�H�W�� �I�R�U�� �I�L�Q�D�Q�F�L�D�O����
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New Member Induction  On-going Member Development  

Aim:   To give oversight of council processes and 
procedures to enable new members to get quickly 
up to speed with their role  

Aim: to provide ongoing development 
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3.42. �7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���6�F�U�X�W�L�Q�\���I�X�Q�F�W�L�R�Q���U�H�J�X�O�D�U�O�\���H�Q�J�D�J�H�V���Z�L�W�K���N�H�\���S�D�U�W�Q�H�U�V���D�Q�G���R�W�K�H�U��
interested groups and individuals in order to assess the impact and suitability 
�R�I�� �W�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���D�F�W�L�Y�L�W�\���� �� �7�K�H���6�F�U�X�W�L�Q�\�� �&�R�P�P�L�W�W�H�H�V���P�D�N�H���D�Q���D�Q�Q�X�D�O���U�H�S�R�U�W���W�R��
Full Council. 
 

3.43. The Customer First programme and Communications Review ensures that 
clear channels of communication are in place with service users, citizens and 
stakeholders.  The Council holds meetings in public wherever possible.   
Directorates have extensive programmes of consultation and engagement 
activity for specific services. 

 
 

4. Review of effectiveness  
 

4.1. The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of 
the effectiveness of its go 
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The Strategic Director of Finance and Legal is responsible for ensuring that 
there is an adequate and effective system of internal a



Birmingham City Council
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Issue 
No 

Governance Issue  Mitigation Action / Proposed 
Action  

The Care Act 2014 sets out the 
legal requirements for adult 
safeguarding. 
 
 

at all levels has been introduced.  
 
The Care Act established the 
requirement to set up an independent 
Safeguarding Board for 
Adults.  Arrangements are in place to 
work alongside the existing 
membership of the Birmingham Adults 
Safeguarding Board (BSAB) with a 
view to ensuring that local 
arrangements are compliant with the 
Care Act. 
 
 

2 Financial Resilience  
 
The Council faces continued 
reducing resources.  This poses 
challenges to the financial 
resilience of the Council.   
 
�7�K�H���&�R�X�Q�F�L�O�¶�V���%�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V���3�O�D�Q���V�H�W�V��
medium term strategies for 
business changes, the 
management and development of 
its services and maintenance of its 
assets, and a specific plan over a 
period of up to 10 years.   
 
Given the Council is in the sixth 
year of budget reductions the 
possibility of Judicial Review 
challenge to the budget or 
elements of it remains high. 
 
The risk of failure to deliver the 
necessary actions to achieve 
savings requires close monitoring. 
 

 
 
Service Reviews considered options 
for future service delivery in the light of 
corporate priorities, statutory duties, 
service performance standards and 
resources available.  
 
By focussing on its Future Council 
2020 vision, the Council has agreed its 
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Issue 
No 

Governance Issue  Mitigation Action / Proposed 
Action  

demands to evidence Going 
Concern.  
    
 
 

analysis and robust legal challenge. 
The Council has sought to secure 
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Issue 
No 

Governance Issue  Mitigation Action / Proposed 
Action  

5 Partnership Working  
 
The Council is seeking ways to 
improve effective partnership 
working, such as working with 
neighbouring authorities through 
establishing the combined 
authority and taking forward the 
devolution deal. 
 
The Council is looking at ways of 
working together across a range of 
agencies, to improve services 
outcomes and reduce costs. 
 
Options may include: 
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Glossary  
 
Academy S chool  
A school that chooses to opt out of Local Authority control and receive its funding direct from 
the Education Funding Agency. 
 
Accruals  
Income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money is 
received or paid (see Debtors and Creditors). 
 
Amortised Cost  
Some financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost, where part of their 
carrying amount in the balance sheet will be either written down or written up via the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the term of the instrument. 
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CIPFA/SOLACE 
The CIPFA/SOLACE Framework helps local authorities to develop and maintain their own 
codes of governance and discharge their accountability for the proper conduct of public 
business. 
 
Collection Fund  
A fund administered by the Council recording receipts from Council Tax and payments to the 
General Fund and other public authorities. It also records receipts of National Non-Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) collected. 
 
Community Assets  
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful 
life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are 
parks and historic buildings. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)  
This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 
taxation.  
 
Consistency  
The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from 
one period to the next is the same. 
 
Creditors  
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered, but for 
which payment has not been made by the end of the year. 
 
Current Value  
Current value is a measurement base which reflects the economic environment prevailing for 
the service or function that an asset supports when valuing the asset. The current value 
measurement bases include Existing Use Value, Depreciated Replacement Cost and Fair 
Value (see below) 
 
Debtors  
Sums of money owed to the Council for work done, goods received, services rendered or 
taxation due but not received by the end of the year. 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts  
These represent income that is still due following disposal of a non-current asset. 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme  
Pension schemes in which the benefits received by the participants are independent of the 
contributions paid and are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 
 
Defined Contribution Pension Sche me 
Pension schemes or other retirement benefit schemes in which the employer pays regular 
fixed contributions as an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient 
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods.  
 
Depreciated Replacement Cost  
This is a method of valuation which provides the current cost of replacing an asset with its 
modern equivalent asset less deductions for physical deterioration and obsolescence.  
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Depreciation  
The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life 
of a non-current asset. 
 
Earmarked Reserve  
A sum set aside for a specific purpose. 
 
Effective Interest Rate  
The rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument. 
 
Emoluments  
Payments received in cash and benefits for employment. 
 
Events After the Reporting Period  
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  
A separate account detailing the expenditure and income arising from the provision of 
council housing. 
 
Impairment  
A diminution in value of a fixed asset resulting from, for example, obsolescence or physical 
damage. To comply with accounting standards the Council undertakes annual reviews of its 
assets to identify any assets which have been impaired. 
 
Infrastructure As sets  
These are inalienable assets, the value of which is recognised only by continued use of the 
asset created. Examples of such assets are highways and footpaths. 
 
Intangible Assets  
An intangible (non-physical) item may be defined as an asset when access to the future 
economic benefits it represents is controlled by the reporting entity.   
 
Investment Properties  
Interest in land and/or buildings in respect of which construction work and development have 
been completed, or which is held for its investment potential with rental income being 
negotiated at arm�¶s length. 
 
Investments  



Birmingham City Council
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COUNCIL 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Birmingham City Council (the "Authority") for the 
year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Act"). 
The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group 
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 
Group Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the 
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the 
Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account  
and the related notes.
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Opinion on financial statements  
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

�x present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and Group as at 
31 March 2016 and of the Authority's and Group's expenditure and income for the 
year then ended; and 

�x have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and 
applicable law. 

 
 
Opinion on other matters  
 
In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial statements 
in the Narrative Reports, and the Annual Governance Statement is consistent with the Group 
audited financial statements. 
 
 
Matters on which we  are required to report by exception  
 
We are required to report to you if: 

�x in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance 
included in �µ�'�H�O�L�Y�H�U�L�Q�J���*�R�R�G���*�R�Y�H�U�Q�D�Q�F�H���L�Q���/�R�F�D�O���*�R�Y�H�U�Q�P�H�Q�W�����D���)�U�D�P�H�Z�R�U�N�¶��
published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; or 

�x we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act; or 
�x we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Act; or 
�x we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Act. 
 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
 
Conclusion on the Authority �¶s arrangements to secure  value for money through 
econom ic, efficien t and effective use of its resources  
 
Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor  
 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority has made 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources are operating effectively. 
 
 
Scope of the review of  the Authority's  arrangements to secure  value for money 
through econom ic, efficien t and effective use of its resources  
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Act (the "Code"), having regard to 
the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in 
November 2015, as to whether the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
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properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined 
these criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the Code in satisfying ourselves 
whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through 
the economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code. Based on our risk assessment, we 
undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether in all significant 
respects the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money 
through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources. 
 
 
Basis for qualified conclusion  

In considering the Authority's arrangements for securing efficiency, economy and 
effectiveness we identified the following matters: 

 
Financial planning arrangements 
 
The Authority's 2015/16 budget included the requirement to deliver £110.3 million of 
recurrent savings. During 2015/16 the Authority also updated its Long Term Financial Plan 
and Efficiency Statement for the period 2016/17 - 2025/26, which inc8 Tm(26)] T22.7 796.sP32

ET

 EMC4( )] TJ
78 728.14 
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However, an Ofsted monitoring visit in June 2016 identified 13 areas of underperformance, 
where they stated that arrangements were not yet adequate. The issues identified included: 
 

�x a lack of consistent improvement; 
�x failure of senior management to promptly and effectively implement change; 
�x failure to ensure children are always kept safe and not doing enough to protect 

children from potential harm;  
�x significant numbers of children missing from education; and  
�x weak strategic leadership of safeguarding children in schools that lacks sufficient 
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Certificate  
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of the Authority in accordance 
with the requirements of the Act and the Code. 
 
 
Phil Jones 
 
 
Phil Jones 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 
 
Colmore Building 
20 Colmore Circus 
Birmingham  
B4 6AT 
 

30th September 2016 

 


